

Non-Executive Director for the Defence Audit and Risk Assurance Committee

Candidate Briefing Pack

Closing date: 11 July 2022 at 23:59

Reference: 51288 - please quote on all

correspondence



Contents

A message from the Second Permanent Secretary	3
Diversity and Equality of Opportunity	4
Background to the Organisation	5
The Role and Person Specification	6
Person Specification and eligibility criteria	7
Terms and Conditions of Appointment	8
The recruitment process	4
How to apply and submit your application	5
Eligibility criteria	5
Conflict of interest and due diligence	13
Data Protection and Privacy Notice	14
Dealing with your concerns	14
Annex A: The Seven Principles of Public Life	15
Annex B: Conflict of Interest	16
Annex C: Terms of Reference for DARAC	18

A message from the Second Permanent Secretary

Dear Candidate.

Thank you for your interest in this opportunity to join the Defence Audit and Risk Assurance Committee (DARAC).

You may already have some idea about the important work of the Ministry of Defence (MOD) and the following pages will tell you more about its purpose, the nature of the Board and this role, as well as the application process.

We are looking for two insightful, purposeful, and independent Non-Executive Directors (NED) to join the DARAC and help drive forward a robust corporate governance plan, internal control and risk assurance processes.

If you have the experience and qualities we are seeking, we very much look forward to hearing from you.



Laurence Lee Second Permanent Secretary

Diversity and Equality of Opportunity

Public Appointees play an important role in public life on the board of public bodies and in statutory offices. For this reason, it is of great importance that these boards reflect the diversity of the UK as a whole. We welcome applications from all candidates regardless of ethnicity, religion or belief, gender, sexual orientation, age, disability, gender identity.

We ask all applicants to public appointments to complete a diversity monitoring form. We hope you will help us by providing this information. This will allow us to see if there are any unfair barriers to becoming a public appointee and whether there are any changes we could make to encourage a more diverse field to apply. Please find the link in the how to apply section below.

Disability Confident

Disability Confident is a voluntary scheme which replaced the Guaranteed Interview Scheme or Two Ticks Scheme that was widely used in Britain. Disability Confident supports the Government's commitment to halve the employment gap between candidates who have disabilities and those who do not by encouraging employers to think about disability and to take positive action to improve how they attract, recruit and retain workers with disabilities.

As a Disability Confident employer, we are committed to ensuring that candidates with disabilities are provided with the adjustments that they require as part of the recruitment

process. If you require any reasonable adjustments, please contact DBSCivPers-
ResNONSTDAPPTS@mod.gov.uk to

ResNONSTDAPPTS@mod.gov.uk to discuss your requirements.

We will also offer an interview to a fair and proportionate number of disabled applicants that meet the minimum criteria for the job - by minimum criteria you must be able to provide sufficient evidence to demonstrate relevant skills and experience for each of the selection criterion set out in the Person Specification section. This does not mean that all candidates who have a disability are entitled to an interview.

The aim of this commitment is to encourage positive action for candidates with disabilities, encouraging them to apply for positions in public life by offering them the assurance that, should they meet the minimum criteria as advertised for the position, they will be given the opportunity to demonstrate their skills, talent and abilities at the interview stage.

It is important to note that if we receive a higher volume of applications that far exceeds the number of those expected then we may need to limit the overall numbers of interviews offered. This will include the number of interviews offered to Disability Confident candidates that meet the minimum criteria for the role. To be eligible for GIS the candidate must have a disability, as defined by the Equality Act 2010. Further definition can be found on the Cabinet Office website.

Background to the Organisation

'Defence' describes the various activities and organisations in the Ministry of Defence that deliver the department's three outputs:

- Defence Policy
- Military Capability the ability to conduct military operations
- Military Operations

It comprises eighteen organisations, including Head Office (based in London), the three service Commands and Strategic Command, and a variety of other organisations that either deliver or support military capability in one form or another, or direct its use on operations.

The MOD is a government department led by the Secretary of State for Defence, supported by the Permanent Secretary, as the principal policy adviser and principal departmental Accounting Officer; the Second Permanent Secretary, who oversees delivery of the Integrated Review and the Defence Command Paper; the Chief of the Defence Staff, the professional head of the Armed Forces and the Secretary of State's principal military adviser; and the Vice Chief of the Defence Staff who runs the armed forces aspects of Defence business. MOD is both a Department of State and a Strategic Military Headquarters that directs Military Operations on behalf of the government.

Defence business is managed through the Defence Board which is chaired by the Secretary of State. It is responsible for the top-level leadership and management of Defence and the main focus is the strategy and plans for generating military forces.

The Defence Board exists to advise and assist Secretary of State and Permanent Secretary and ensure alignment of resources and objectives. It also aims to assure itself of the effectiveness of the Department's risk management system and its internal controls and give a clear steer on the desired risk appetite for the Department.

The Role and Person Specification

This is an exciting time to join the Ministry of Defence. We are looking to appoint two individuals with commitment and expertise to become Non-Executive Directors on the Defence Audit and Risk Assurance Committee.

The Defence Audit & Risk Assurance Committee (DARAC) is a sub-committee of the Defence Board. It supports the Board and the Permanent Secretary as the Accounting Officer, in their responsibilities for risk control and governance by reviewing the comprehensiveness, reliability and integrity of the MOD's risk and assurance framework.

Its responsibilities are to advise the Defence Board and Accounting Officer on:

- the integrity and reliability of the risk and assurance frameworks;
- issues raised by assurance providers, including Defence Internal Audit (DIA), National Audit Office (NAO) and TLB audit committees;
- the effectiveness of TLB audit committees:
- the content of the Governance Statement, including recommendations on individual control issues to highlight;
- the accounting policies, the accounts and the annual report of the Department, including the process for the review of the accounts prior to submission for audit, levels of error identified, and management's letter of representation to the external auditors;
- planned activity and results of DIA, and adequacy of management response to issue raised by both DIA and NAO; and
- effectiveness on anti-fraud policies, whistle-blowing processes and arrangements for special investigations.

As a DARAC NED, you will form part of a team of four providing independent scrutiny for the department, supporting the MOD in maintaining good governance and advise on policy matters and cross-government initiatives.

The DARAC will meet up to seven times per year and with a stimulating schedule of objectives going forward we are looking for a subject matter expert to provide equitable scrutiny and challenge. Your input will influence the way we do business and help the MOD achieve its organisational aims. See Annex C for full Terms of Reference for the DARAC.

Person Specification and eligibility criteria

All candidates must demonstrate, in their CV and supporting letter, how they meet the following criteria, through their knowledge, attributes and skills.

Essential criteria

Candidates must demonstrate the following essential criteria.

- Experience in financial management. A firm understanding of accounting standards and how to apply them in a public or private sector organisation;
- Risk management experience;
- Knowledge and experience of delivery of challenging internal control systems and corporate governance processes;
- experience as Member, of an audit committee for large organisations in either the public or private commercial sector;
- a relevant professional qualification;
- have relevant and suitable qualifications relating to the conduct of audit activity;
- Private sector experience of working on large and complex commercial or digital and technology programmes;
- outstanding leadership, teamwork, listening and influencing skills;
- sound judgement and a high level of integrity (including when dealing with classified, confidential, or sensitive issues); and
- genuine interest in contributing to the effective running of the Department at the board level, elsewhere in the Department and (as appropriate) across government.

Desirable criteria

The following criteria are also desirable:

- Experience in the digital and technology sector, preferably with experience of delivering large scale transformation initiatives.
- Experience of working in a regulatory environment.

Assessment process

During the sift, the Advisory
Assessment Panel will assess and
provide an overall score which reflects
the degree to which candidate's
demonstrated their suitability for the
role across all of the eligibility criteria
(the essential and desirable criteria).
Based on the strength of the field of
applicants, the selection panel will set
a "minimum passable mark" which
candidates must meet in order to be
shortlisted to interview.

Disability Confident - minimum criteria

Candidates who apply under the Disability Confident scheme will be assessed against the minimum criteria for the role. The minimum criteria for this role is the essential criteria as set out above. In order to be shortlisted for interview, candidates must receive a minimum overall score as determined by the panel, this is the "minimum passable mark" for Disability Confident candidates.

Terms and Conditions of Appointment

Time commitment and remuneration

The post requires a core commitment of up to 7 meetings per annum, with the potential need for other meeting attendance. This will be no more than 20 days a year, for which the daily fee is £750 up to and not exceeding an annual maximum of £15,000. Reasonable travel and subsistence expenses will be reimbursed in line with MOD's policy. The post is not pensionable.

Appointment term

The appointment will be for a period of 3 years. There may be a possibility of re-appointment, for no more than a further 3 years, subject to a satisfactory annual appraisal of performance assessed by the Permanent Secretary of the Ministry of Defence. Acceptance of the appointment does not constitute employment with the MOD or Civil Service.

Location

Meetings are usually held in Main Building, Whitehall, London. Occasional travel to other military establishments may also be required.

Code of Practice

All Board Members are required to adhere to:

- The Cabinet Office <u>Code of</u> <u>Conduct for Board Members of Public</u> Bodies
- The Seven Principles of Public Life (see <u>Annex A</u>)

Performance appraisal

The board member will be assessed at least once a year against their performance for each year of their appointment, which will be carried out by the Chair of the Defence Audit and Risk Assurance Committee.

Termination of appointment

The successful candidate may resign at any time by notice in writing to the Permanent Secretary of the Ministry of Defence. Subsequently, the Permanent Secretary of the Ministry of Defence can remove you from office if you fail to perform the duties required in line with the standards expected in public office.

Security clearance

This post is reserved for UK nationals only. The successful candidate must hold or be willing to obtain security clearance to Security Check (SC) clearance before taking up this role. Further information on National Security Vetting can be found on the Gov.uk website here/by/49/

Confidentiality

You will be subject to the provisions of the Official Secrets Act and required to exercise care in the use of official information acquired in the course of official duties, and not to disclose information which is held in confidence.

The recruitment process

The Assessment Advisory Panel (AAP) will sift and assess each application against the criteria, to produce a shortlist to invite to interview. Subject to agreement by the Permanent Secretary, the AAP will then conduct interviews to ascertain which candidates are appointable to the role.

Interviews are expected to take place in London and will last for approximately 45 minutes. Further details about the format will be provided to you in advance.

Indicative timetable for recruitment

Activity	Date
Closing Date	11 th July 2022
Sift	22 nd July 2022
Final Panel Interviews	w/c 26 th September 2022

It is essential that your statement of suitability gives full but concise information relevant to the appointment, clearly demonstrating how you meet the **eligibility criteria**.

The Advisory Assessment Panel will consist of:

- Laurence Lee, MOD Second Permanent Secretary
- Kate Guthrie, MOD Departmental Non-Executive Director
- Pavita Cooper, Independent Panel Member (Non-Executive Director)

The decision to appoint to this role rests with the Permanent Secretary. Candidates considered appointable by the AAP may be invited to meet with the Permanent Secretary before a final decision is made. As a result, there may be a delay in informing candidates of the outcome of the competition.

The successful applicant will be required to sign the Official Secrets Act and go through the appropriate security checks for this position.

The DBS Non-Standard Appointments Team will acknowledge receipt of your application and keep you updated on the progress of the competition. All candidates will be notified of the outcome of their application.

Please note: Candidates will not be able to claim for expenses incurred travelling to and from the interview. A candidate reserve list will be held for 12 months and may be used for similar roles that occur in the future.

Completed applications should be emailed to DBSCivPers-ResPublicAppts@mod.gov.uk by 11th July 2022 at 23:59

How to apply and submit your application

If you wish to apply for this appointment, please supply the following:

A CV (maximum two sides A4, minimum font 12) setting out your career history and including details of any professional qualifications.

A short supporting statement in the Expression of Interest form (see below) (maximum two sides A4, minimum font 12) explaining how you meet the essential and desirable criteria (Page 7). Make sure you refer to the contents of this information pack and provide specific examples which demonstrate proven and demonstrable expertise or ability. Please ensure your full name and the reference number are clearly stated at the top of your CV and additional papers.

Complete the Expression of Interest form including your supporting statement; contact details for two referees (by providing their details you are giving consent for us to contact them should you be successful at the shortlisting stage) and any conflict of interest (see further information below and Annex B).

Complete and return via email the **Diversity Monitoring form** including stating any political activity.

Note References will be taken up if candidates are invited to an interview. You should ensure that they have given their permission for their names with us and for us to contact them when you include them in the EOI.

If you are applying under the **Disability Confident Scheme** you will need to meet the minimum criteria for the role as determined by the Panel. This will guarantee an invite to an interview. To ensure fairness, the Interview Panel will not be informed who has applied under the scheme until they have set the minimum criteria at the start of the sift meeting. **Please tick the DCS Box in the Expression of Interest form.**

If you have queries about any aspect of this role, or you wish to have an informal discussion, then please contact Colette Zoil on 020 780 78256

If you have queries about the recruitment process, please contact the Defence Business Services on DBSCivPers-ResPublicAppts@mod.gov.uk

Eligibility criteria

To be eligible for consideration the candidate will need to be a UK National. <u>Civil Service Nationality Rules</u>

The candidate is expected to inform Permanent Secretary if they intend to accept a prominent position in any political party and to understand that the appointment may be terminated if it is felt that the position is incompatible.

The successful applicant will be required to sign the Official Secrets Act and go through the appropriate security checks for this position. The successful candidate must meet the security requirements before they can be appointed. The level of security needed is Security Check (SC).

There are circumstances in which an individual may not be considered for appointment. If:

- You have received a prison sentence or suspended sentence of 3 months or more in the last 5 years;
- You are the subject of a bankruptcy restrictions order or interim order, or a debt relief order or interim debt relief order under Schedule 4ZB to the Insolvency Act 1986;
- You are disqualified from acting as a company director under the Company Directors Disqualification Act 1986;
- You have been removed from trusteeship of a charity,
- You fail to declare any conflict of interest

Conflict of interest and due diligence

If you have any interest that might be relevant to the work of the Ministry of Defence and which could lead to a real or perceived conflict of interest if you were to be appointed, please provide details in the **Expression of Interest form**. (Annex B in this information pack should help you to evaluate whether you have a potential conflict.) This includes other MOD Boards and Committees on which you are already appointed. If you have queries about this and would like to discuss further, please contact: DBSCivPers-ResPublicAppts@mod.gov.uk

Given the nature of public appointments, it is important that those appointed as members of public bodies / Committees maintain the confidence of Parliament and the public. If there are any issues in your personal or professional history that could, if you were appointed, be misconstrued, cause embarrassment, or cause public confidence in the appointment to be jeopardised, it is important that you bring them to the attention of the Interview Panel and provide details of the issue(s) in your application. In considering whether you wish to declare any issues, you should also reflect on any public statements you have made, including through social media.

As part of our **due diligence** checks we will consider anything in the public domain related to your conduct or professional capacity. This will include us undertaking searches of previous public statements and social media, blogs etc. Any information found may be made available to the Interview Panel who may wish to explore further with you should you be invited to an interview. The information may also be shared with Ministers and the Cabinet Office.

Data Protection and Privacy Notice

The Department is required by the Commissioner for Public Appointments and Cabinet Office to retain information about the people who apply for public appointments and non-regulated public appointments and make it available for auditing and management information purposes, if requested. Any data about you will be held in secure conditions with access restricted to those who need it in connection with dealing with your application and the selection process.

The MoD Personal information charter contains the standards you can expect when we ask for, hold or share your personal information and your rights under the law.

Our data protection policy is in line with the requirements of the General Data Protection Regulation and Data Protection Acts. Our data protection officer can be contacted by writing to cio-dpa@mod.gov.uk.

Your initial contact details, including your name and address will be held by the DBS for a period of up to two years.

If you submit an application, that and any supporting documentation, will be retained by DBS for up to two years. Information held electronically, will also be held for up to two years.

If you would like these details to be removed from our records as soon as this recruitment campaign is completed, please write or email to DBS Public Appointments Team:

DBSCivPers-ResPublicAppts@mod.gov.uk

Dealing with your concerns

We aim to process all applications as quickly as possible and to treat all applicants with courtesy. If you feel that you have any complaints about the way your application has been handled, please contact in the first instance: DBSCivPers-
ResPublicAppts@mod.gov.uk

Annex A: The Seven Principles of Public Life

The candidate is expected to adhere and understand the standards of probity required of public appointees outlined below in the "Seven Principles of Public Life" drawn up by the Committee of Standards in Public Life.

Selflessness

Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest. They should not do so in order to gain financial or other benefits for themselves, their family or their friends.

Integrity

Holders of public office should not place themselves under any financial or other obligation to outside individuals or organisations that might seek to influence them in the performance of their official duties.

Objectivity

In carrying out public business, including making public appointments, awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards and benefits, holders of public office should make choices on merit.

Accountability

Holders of public office are accountable for their decisions and actions to the public and must submit themselves to whatever scrutiny is appropriate to their office.

Openness

Holders of public office should be as open as possible about all the decisions and actions that they take. They should give reasons for their decisions and restrict information only when the wider public interest clearly demands.

Honesty

Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests relating to their public duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising, in order to protect the public interest.

Leadership

Holders of public office should promote and support these principles by leadership and example.

The candidate is also expected to adhere to the <u>Code of Conduct for board members of public bodies</u>.

Annex B: Conflict of Interest

Q1. What is a conflict of interest?

Public Appointments require the highest standards of propriety, involving impartiality, integrity and objectivity, in relation to the stewardship of public funds and the oversight and management of all related activities. This means that any private, voluntary, charitable or political interest which material might be relevant to the work of the public body concerned should be declared.

There is always the possibility for real or perceived conflicts of interest to arise. A perceived inference of a conflict may, on occasions, be as damaging as the existence of a real conflict. It is important, therefore, that you consider your circumstances when applying for a public appointment and identify any potential conflicts of interest, whether real or perceived.

Q2. Surely a perceived conflict is not a problem, as long as I act impartially at all times?

The integrity of the individual is not in question here. However, it is necessary for the standing of the individual and the Board that members of the public have confidence in their independence and impartiality. Even a perceived conflict of interest on the part of a Board member can be extremely damaging to the public body's reputation and it is therefore essential that these are declared and explored, in the same way as an actual conflict would be. The fact that a member acted impartially may be no defence against accusations of potential bias.

Q3. If I hold another Ministry of Defence appointment will it be considered a conflict of interest?

It will depend on the nature of the role you have and the one you are applying for. In some circumstances the relationship between the two may make it too difficult to put in place arrangements to manage the conflicts. In such circumstances you would have to decide which role you would want to step away from. To allow the Interview Panel to consider fully you should provide details of other MOD roles you have or may be applying for in the **Expression of Interest** form.

Q4. What should I do if I think I have a conflict of interest?

You will find a section on conflicts of interest in the **Expression of Interest** form for you to complete. This asks you to consider and declare whether or not you have a real, or perceived, conflict. If you are unsure of your circumstances constitute a possible conflict, you should still complete this section, in order to give the Interview Panel as much information as possible. You might also find it helpful to discuss it with sponsor/ public body / Committee contact shown in the information pack.

Q5. If I declare a conflict, does this mean I will not be considered for appointment?

No - each case is considered individually. If you are short listed for interview, the Interview Panel will explore with you how far the conflict might affect your ability to contribute effectively and impartially on the Board and how this might be managed, if you were to be appointed. For example, it may be possible to arrange for you to step out of meetings where an issue is discussed, in which you have an interest. However, if, following the discussion with you, the AAP believes that the conflict is too great and appropriate arrangements cannot be made and would call into question the probity of the Board, they can withdraw your application

Q6. What happens if I do not declare a known conflict, which is then discovered by the Department after my appointment?

Again, each case would be considered on its merits, but the Department may take the view that by concealing a conflict of interest, you would be deemed to have breached the Seven Principles of Conduct of Public Life and we may terminate your appointment.

Q7. What happens if I do not realise a potential conflict exists?

This situation may arise where the applicant is not familiar with the broad range of work which a Body covers and therefore does not realise that a conflict might exist. In some cases, the Interview Panel, with their wider knowledge of the public body, might deduce that there is a potential conflict issue, based on the information on employment and experience provided by the candidate in the application form. They will then explore this at interview with the candidate.

Q8. What happens if a conflict of interest arises after an appointment is made?

This could arise for two main reasons. The first is that the member's circumstances may change, for example, they may change jobs and in doing so, a conflict with their work on the Board becomes apparent. The second is where a member is unfamiliar with the range of the work of the public body, but after appointment, it becomes clear that a conflict exists where none had been envisaged during the appointment process.

In both cases, the issue should be discussed with the Chair of the Board and the Chief Executive of the public body (if applicable) concerned, in consultation with the Department, to decide whether or not the member can continue to carry out their role in an appropriate manner and each case would be considered individually.

It may be that the conflict is such that it would be impractical for the member to continue on the Board, if they would have to withdraw from a considerable amount of the public body's routine business. In such cases, the member may be asked to stand down from the public body.

Annex C: Terms of Reference for DARAC



Terms of Reference

Defence Audit & Risk Assurance Committee

Purpose	The Defence Audit & Risk Assurance Committee is a sub-committee of the Defence Board. It supports the Board and Accounting Officer in their responsibilities for risk control and governance by reviewing the comprehensiveness, reliability and integrity of the MOD's risk and assurance framework.
Scope	The Audit & Risk Assurance Committee will advise the Board and Accounting Officer on:
	 The integrity and reliability of the risk and assurance frameworks. Issues raised by assurance providers, including DIA, NAO and TLB audit committees.
	 The effectiveness of TLB audit committees The content of the Governance Statement, including recommendations on individual control issues to highlight. The accounting policies, the accounts and the annual report of the
	Department, including the process for the review of the accounts prior to submission for audit, levels of error identified, and management's letter of representation to the external auditors. • Planned activity and results of DIA, and adequacy of management response to
	issue raised by both DIA and NAO. • Effectiveness on anti-fraud policies, whistle-blowing processes and arrangements for special investigations.
	To discharge these duties, the Audit & Risk Assurance Committee will scrutinise and challenge the work of the assurance providers listed above.
Membership	Membership of the ARAC comprises:
	 A Non-Executive Chair who should also be a member of the Defence Board 3 Non-Executives who should also be the Chairs of TLB Audit & Risk Assurance Committees
	The Permanent Secretary or DG Finance will be expected to attend every full meeting, as will the Head of Internal Audit and a representative from the National Audit Office.
	A minimum of two members of the Audit & Risk Assurance Committee will be present for the meeting to be deemed quorate.
	The Committee may require the owners of strategic risks, TLB holders and Process Owners to attend meetings where it judges that there are significant risks in their areas, or, for the first two, there are concerns about the adequacy of assurance provided in their reports.

Frequency	The Audit & Risk Assurance Committee will meet up to seven times per year. The Chair will also convene a meeting with the Chairs of TLB audit committees at least twice a year, to inform the Committee's recommendations on the Governance Statement.
Secretariat	Secretariat function will be provided by the Corporate Effectiveness Boards Secretariat. All papers / briefing material will be expected two weeks in advance of the meeting.
Papers	Papers for ARAC meetings are usually commissioned at least three weeks in advance of a meeting. ARAC members will receive a full pack of meeting papers one week before a meeting. Where papers cannot be circulated to this timeframe, the Chair, with advice from the Secretariat, will determine if they can be taken or if they should be postponed to the next meeting or considered out of committee.
	The Secretariat will ensure high quality accurate minutes are taken and will prepare draft minutes within 3 working days of each meeting. Comments or amendments to minutes should be sent to the Secretariat out of Committee. Minutes should be endorsed by the Committee at the following meeting.
Governance	The ARAC is a sub-committee of the Defence Board.